IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3

User Guide



Note

Before using this information and the product it supports, read the information in Notices.

Product Information

This document applies to Version 2.0.3 and may also apply to subsequent releases.

Copyright

IBM, the IBM logo and ibm.com are trademarks or registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies. A current list of IBM trademarks is available on the Web at " <u>Copyright and trademark information</u> " at www.ibm.com/legal/copytrade.shtml.

[©] Copyright International Business Machines Corporation 2017, 2018.

US Government Users Restricted Rights – Use, duplication or disclosure restricted by GSA ADP Schedule Contract with IBM Corp.

Contents

Introduction	v
Chapter 1. Overview	1
Chapter 2. Ingestion	3
Chapter 3. User credentials	5
Logging in	5
Components of the landing page	
Chapter 4. System Status	9
Head band section	
Processing Stage	
Processing Status CAT Data Processing	
Chapter 5 Errors	13
Streams	
Systems	14
Chapter 6. Query	
Query Errors	
Error Details	
Query Records	
Chapter 7. Configuration Management	
Configuring systems	20
Uploading configuration files	22
Chapter 8. Logout	
Appendix A. Accessibility features	
Notices	27
Trademarks	
Index	

Introduction

IBM Financial Transactions Repository provides a trade repository for IBM[®] Surveillance Insight[®] for Financial Services. IBM Financial Transactions Repository processes daily trading event data from your organization's order management system from variety of formats and models. All of the incoming trading events are stored to meet regulatory auditing requirements.

Audience

This guide is intended for administrators and users of the IBM Financial Transactions Repository solution.

Finding information and getting help

To find product documentation on the web, access <u>IBM Knowledge Center</u> (www.ibm.com/support/ knowledgecenter/SSWTQQ).

Accessibility features

Accessibility features help users who have a physical disability, such as restricted mobility or limited vision, to use information technology products. Some of the components included in the IBM Financial Transactions Repository have accessibility features. For more information, see <u>Appendix A</u>, "Accessibility features," on page 25.

The HTML documentation has accessibility features. PDF documents are supplemental and, as such, include no added accessibility features.

Forward-looking statements

This documentation describes the current functionality of the product. References to items that are not currently available may be included. No implication of any future availability should be inferred. Any such references are not a commitment, promise, or legal obligation to deliver any material, code, or functionality. The development, release, and timing of features or functionality remain at the sole discretion of IBM.

Samples disclaimer

Sample files may contain fictional data manually or machine generated, factual data that is compiled from academic or public sources, or data that is used with permission of the copyright holder, for use as sample data to develop sample applications. Product names that are referenced may be the trademarks of their respective owners. Unauthorized duplication is prohibited.

vi IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Chapter 1. Overview

IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), delivers a trade repository as part of a regulatory reporting solution. Financial Transactions Repository processes daily trading events from an organization's order management system.

Trade data can be sent to Financial Transactions Repository in a variety of different formats and models in batch mode. All incoming events are stored as is to meet regulatory auditing requirements. The FTR is designed to be a repository of trade transactions ingested from client systems using analytics components, which provide insights to compliance users. FTR can be configured to process input from a variety of FIX based order management systems. This release of FTR version 2.0.3, consists of the Data Ingestion component. This component entails the following:

- an ingestion component
- · a transaction repository
- a communication channel for indicating the status of data ingestion

It can ingest trade transaction records in FIX protocol versions 4.0, 4.1, and 4.2. The ingested data is stored and is available for use by downstream analytics layers. Messages indicating the status of the ingestion at various stages are conveyed periodically.

2 IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Chapter 2. Ingestion

The trading data files that are collected from the trading systems can be ingested into the IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR) system using a simple file transfer mechanism.

The FTR system has a designated watch folder on one of the servers. All the trading data files that are placed in this folder are picked up by the FTR system and placed into the HDFS system and processed for consumption by the applications.

The systems and streams for which the data has to be ingested are configurable as described in <u>Configuration Management</u>. The ingestion module expects the filename to contain the stream name and trading date.

The file name of the trading data is expected to be in the format: strmname_yyyymmdd.extn

Where,

strmname : Name of the stream, such as nets, raptor, or Fidessa.

yyyymmdd : Trading date in yyyymmdd format.

extn : File extensions of log, txt, csv, and psv are supported in this release

The following file name is an example of a nets trading file: nets_20180415.log

When the trading data file must be reingested with any modifications or corrections, the same file name as the first ingestion must be used. The ingestion module takes care of renaming the file with the correct version details.

The ingested data is processed by the FTR system to translate into a readable format. The readiness of the processed data is published to a Kafka topic. This notification can be used by the applications to start consuming the trading data using APIs provided by FTR. The Kafka topic name is configurable using the Configuration Management page.

4 IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Chapter 3. User credentials

This chapter guides the analyst on how to login and access the services of the IBM Financial Transactions Repository tool.

Logging in

The first step is to log in to the IBM Financial Transactions Repository application.

Procedure

- 1. On the Financial Transactions Repository login page, enter your username.
- 2. Enter your password.
- 3. Click Login.

IBM Financial Crimes Insight with Watson	
Username	
Password	
Login	
Licensed Materials – Property of IBM © Copyright IBM Corporation 2017, 2018. All Rights Reserved.	
U.S. Government Users Restricted Rights: Use, duplication or disclosure restricted by GSA ADP Schedule Contract with IBM Corp.	
(E) Java	

Figure 1: Login page

Landing page for the analyst

After successfully logging into IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), you will see the Surveillance Insights dashboard page.

Access to FTR from the Surveillance Insights user-interface is role based. If the logged in user's role is authorized to access the FTR application, the link to FTR is displayed in the navigation bar.

IBM Surveillance Insig	ht Dashboard Health Cheo	k Admin FTR			O,	O SIFS Officer ▼
Alerts Employees						
Score 🖕	Туре 崇	Date 🛓	ID 崇	Ticker 🚔	Assest Class 🜲	Status 🚔
85%	Spoofing	Jan 18, 2018	1521719798888	NPDZ	Equity	New
75%	FrontRunning	Jan 18, 2018	1521719799127	PDZ	Equity	New
75%	FrontRunning	Jan 24, 2018	1521719802148	PDZ	Equity	New

Figure 2: The link to FTR is displayed

After clicking the FTR link, the landing page of FTR is displayed. Each component of this page is explained in the following chapters of this guide.

System Status						Total S 5	oystems -	Total Files 5	Total Records 54	Total Error 21
Select Trading Day									🖬 Wed, :	24 Jan 2018
Processing Stage										
Ingestion										
Files										
5										
Records										
54										
21										
Processing Status										Switch to list view
System Status algos IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16 05:22:00	Stop 2018-05-16 05:22:04	System nets	Status IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16 05:25:33	Stop 2018-05-16 05:26:11	System Of	Status IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16 05:28:39	Stop 2018-05-16 05:28:48
Errors	Files		Errors		Files		Errors		Files	
0	1		5		1		6		1	
Bytes	Records		Bytes		Records		Bytes		Records	
347	5		1,75	9	10		4,05	0	14	
System Status raptor IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16 05:31:46	Stop 2018:05:16 05:31:51	System si	Status Completed	Start 2018-05-16 05:33:48	Stop 2018-05-16 06:17:21	System Fidessa	Status —	Start —	Stop —
Errors	Files		Errors		Files		Errors		Records	
2	1		8		1		-		-	
Bytes	Records		Bytes	•	Records		Files		Bytes	
1,052	5		3,39	8	20		_		-	
System Status gw –	Start —	Stop —								
Errors	Records									
Files	Bytes									
	_									
CAT Data Processin All Records Errors	g									Date vs Prior 👻
ords										LOIS
40 08										۵.
20										

Figure 3: Financial Transactions Repository landing page

Components of the landing page

The following options are available to analysts in IBM Financial Transactions Repository: **System Status**, **Errors**, **Query**, and **Configuration**.

Figure 4: Landing page components

System Status

This gives the ingestion status for a given trading day with various metrics such as, number of records, number of files, number of errors, bytes per system, errors per system, records per system, start time and end time of ingestion for each system, and the ingestion status for each system. It also provides a time line view of records ingested and the errors encountered, if any, in a chart form. For more information, see Chapter 4, "System Status," on page 9.

Errors

This gives the stream level error and system level error for a given trading date. For more information, see Chapter 5, "Errors," on page 13.

Query

This is used to query errors and records. The errors occurred during the ingestion can be queried using various filters such as, date, start time, end time, systems, stream, and file. The result set for any error query is displayed in a data table. One or more error records can be selected and further details about the error, such as raw record, message, and file details, can be viewed. This page also provides the functionality to query records using date, symbol, start time, and end time. For more information, see Chapter 6, "Query," on page 15.

Configuration

This is used to upload and view configuration properties for internal components such as, streams and DAL components. For more information, see Chapter 7, "Configuration Management," on page 19.

System Status Errors Query Configuration

8 IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Chapter 4. System Status

By default, after the analyst logs into IBM Financial Transactions Repository, the **System Status** page is loaded with the ingestion status for the current day.

The analyst can view the ingestion status of various systems configured in Financial Transactions Repository. The analyst can see the status for any of the past days by changing the date in the date picker.

								System Sta	tus Errors	Query Cont
System Status						Tota 5	l Systems	Total Files 5	Total Records 54	Total Error 21
Select Trading Day									🗂 Wed,	24 Jan 2018
Processing Stage										
Ingestion										
Files										
5										
Records										
54										
21										
Processing Status										Switch to list view
System Status algos IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16	Stop 2018-05-16	System nets	Status	Start 2018-05-16	Stop 2018-05-16	System	Status IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16	Stop 2018-05-16
	05:22:00	05:22:04			05:25:33	05:26:11			05:28:39	05:28:48
Errors	Files		Errors		Files		Errors		Files	
Bytes	Records		C Bytes		Records		Bytes		L Records	
347	5		1,75	9	10		4,05	50	14	
System Status raptor IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-16	Stop 2018-05-16	System si	Status Completed	Start 2018-05-16	Stop 2018-05-16	System Fidessa	Status —	Start —	Stop —
	05:31:46	05:31:51			05:33:48	06:17:21				
2	Files 1		Errors		Files 1		Errors		Records	
Bytes	Records		Bytes		Records		Files		Bytes	
1,052	5		3,39	8	20		-			
System Status gw —	Start —	Stop —								
Crrors	Hecords									
Files	Bytes									
1070	-									
CAT Data Processin	đ									
All Records Errors										Date vs Prior 👻
ords										Tots
40 2		P								5
20										



There are four sections on the System Status page.

Head band section

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository, the head band section displays consolidated metrics for the whole application. The metrics displayed are total systems, total files, total records, and total errors.

System Status	Total Systems	Total Files	Total Records	Total Errors
	3	3	40	6
Select Trading Day			T Fri, 18 May 20	18

Figure 6: Head band section

Processing Stage

The **Processing Stage** in IBM Financial Transactions Repository displays the consolidated metrics for ingestion, including records ingested, files ingested, and errors encountered during ingestion.

You can click the links in the **Processing Stage**, to display the **Errors** page with the data pre-populated for the selected date.

Processing Stage

Ingestion	
Files 3 Records 40 Errors 6	

Figure 7: Processing Stage

Processing Status

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), the **Processing Status** section displays ingestion metrics consolidated for each system configured in the FTR application.

System nets	Status IN-PROGRESS	Start 2018-05-18 01:42:55	Stop 2018-05-18 01:43:02
Errors 6 Bytes 3,35	58	Files 1 Records 20	

Figure 8: Processing Status and System Status

The following details are displayed for each system:

- System: The name of the system configured in the FTR application. For example, FIX Gateway.
- **Status**: One of three possible statuses; In Progress, Complete, or Failed.
- Start: The timestamp when the ingestion for the system began.
- Stop: The timestamp when the ingestion for the system completed.
- Errors: The number of errors including both record parsing errors and system level errors.
- Files: The number of files ingested for a given system.
- Bytes: The memory size of all files ingested for the system.
- Records: The number of records ingested from all the files for a given system.

This section has two types of views; the **card view** and **list view**. The **card view** is the default view and it can be changed by clicking on the view toggle button

Switch to list view

Processing Status

System Status Status Status Start Stop System Start Stop System Start Stop IN-PROGRESS 2018-05-18 2018-05-18 IN-PROGRESS 2018-05-18 2018-05-18 IN-PROGRESS 2018-05-18 2018-05-18 nets algos or 01:42:55 01:48:16 01:48:39 01:43:02 01:49:19 01:49:41 Files Errors Files Errors Files Errors 6 1 0 1 0 1 Bytes Records Bytes Records Bytes Records 3,358 20 2,706 10 620 10 System Status Start Stop System Status Start Stop System Status Start Stop Fidessa gw si Errors Records Records Errors Records Errors Files Files Files Bytes Bytes Bytes

Figure 9: Processing Status and System Status in card view

Processing Status

Switch to card view

Switch to list view

System	Status	Start	Stop	Errors	Bytes	Files	Records
nets	IN-PROGRESS	2018-05-18 01:42:55	2018-05-18 01:43:02	6	3358	1	20
or	IN-PROGRESS	2018-05-18 01:48:16	2018-05-18 01:48:39	0	2706	1	10
algos	IN-PROGRESS	2018-05-18 01:49:19	2018-05-18 01:49:41	0	620	1	10
Fidessa	-			-	-	-	
gw	_			-	-	-	-
si	-			-	-	-	-

Figure 10: Processing Status and System Status in list view

System Status 11

CAT Data Processing

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), the analyst can see the timeline view of the records ingested and errors encountered during the ingestion process.

The consolidated values for records and errors are displayed as a chart with a separate line graph for records and errors. Line graphs for last trading day are also displayed in a different color for the purpose of comparing these values with the selected trading day.



Figure 11: CAT Data Processing

You can toggle between three different views of the data in the chart using the drop-down list at the top right corner of the chart. The following three different views are available:

Date vs Prior

This is the default selection for the **CAT Data Processing** section. The consolidated values for the records and errors for the current trading day and the previous trading day are displayed. Four line graphs are displayed in this view.

Absolute Change

This displays the change in absolute values for the current and previous trading day.

Percentage Change vs Prior

This displays the percentage change in the values between the current and previous trading day.



Figure 12: CAT Data Processing chart views

Chapter 5. Errors

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository, the **Errors** page display the errors for a given trading date in more detail than the **System Status** page.

This page provides two sections to display error details; **Streams** and **Systems**. It also displays the number of errors.



Completed

2018-05-16 06:17:21



Streams

This section display the errors that occurred in all files, including both record level errors and file level errors consolidated per stream.

20

Some additional useful metrics are displayed on the left side of this section, which include the percentage of streams affected, the percentage of systems affected, and the number of files affected. The error by stream is also displayed as a bar chart on the right side of this section. Each stream is represented by a bar, the height of which corresponds to the error count and the color of each bar represents the error percentage. The bars can be sorted by either error count or error percentage by using the drop-down list at the top right of the bar chart. The following tool tips are available for the bar chart:

- Error%: The percentage of records that caused errors out of the total records in the given stream.
- Errors: The total number of errors in the given stream.
- File: The number of files affected in the given stream.
- Records: The number of records affected in the given stream.
- System: The name of the system in which the stream is present.
- Stream: The name of the stream.

You can click on each bar in the chart to view the **Query** page. The errors are filtered by the selected stream and selected date and the error results are displayed in the result section.





Systems

The **Systems** section gives the overview of error by system in a data table.

The errors displayed under the **Errors** column can be clicked to navigate to the **Query** page, which displays the errors in the systems in detail.

Systems

Name	Streams	Files	Records	Errors	Status	Timestamp
nets	1	1	20	6	IN-PROGRESS	2018-05-18 01:43:02

Figure 15: Systems section

Chapter 6. Query

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository, the **Query** page enables the analyst to search for errors and records.

This page has the following sections:

Filter section

This is where you can enter the required filters such as, date, start time, end time, system, stream, and file.

Result display section

This displays the results for the selected query in the filter section.

									Ac	tions	•
Errors			MSG ID	MSG Text	System	Stream	File	Timestamp	Processing Stage		
Date *		-				No error data					
2018-05-2	21								-		
Start Time	End Time	Results per	page 8 -	Page - of 0						<	>
hhommesa	hhtmmiss .										
System											
AL.											
Stream											
AL	-										
			32 <u>-</u>		100		1	1. 10			
File											

Figure 16: Query page

On the Query page, the filter section has an accordion panel with two sections; Errors and Records.

Query Errors

On the **Query** page, the **Errors** section is used to search for errors that occurred in the system during ingestion.

You can search for errors using various filters such as, date, start time, end time, system, stream, and file. After the required filters are selected and **Apply filters** is clicked, the error results are displayed in the result section.

Query	y		
×			Actions 👻
✓ Errors		MSG ID	MSG Text
Date *		1 FTRFX001E	quickfix.InvalidMessage: Expected CheckSum=249, Received CheckSum=190 in 8=FIX.4.19=11235=049=BRKR56=INVMGR34=24052=199806(
2018-05-18	8	2 FTRFX001E	quickfix.InvalidMessage: Missing or garbled message type in 8=FIX.4.019=0139135=U149=XXX134=11016915006=20150=XXX143=N152=201
Start Time	End Time	3 FTRFX001E	quickfix.InvalidMessage: Expected CheckSum=21, Received CheckSum=157 in 8=FIX.4.19=11235=049=BRKR56=INVMGR34=23552=19980604
hhtmmtss	hh:mm:ss	4 FTRFX001E	quickfix.InvalidMessage: Expected CheckSum=187, Received CheckSum=159 in 8=FIX.4.19=15435=649=8RKR56=INVMGR34=23652=199806(
System		5 FTRFX001E	quickfix.InvalidMessage: Expected CheckSum=141, Received CheckSum=168 in 8=FIX.4.19=15435=649=BRKR56=INVMGR34=23952=199806C
All	*	6 FTRFX001E	quickfix.InvalidMessage: Expected CheckSum=134, Received CheckSum=26 in 8=FIX.4.19=9035=049=INVMGR56=BRKR34=23852=19980604-
All			
File			
All	-	Results per page	8 • Page 1 • of 1 × 1 >
Clea	ar all Apply filters		
> Records			

Figure 17: Query Errors

The results display several important details about each error in table format. The following details are displayed for each record:

- MSG ID: The error code of the error record. For example, FTRAPI0020E.
- **MSG Text**: The detailed error message. For example, quickfix.InvalidMessage: Expected CheckSum=249, Received CheckSum=190
- System: The name of the system in which the error record is present.
- Stream: The name of the stream in which the error record is present.
- File: The name of the file in which the error record is present.
- TimeStamp: The timestamp of the error that occurred during ingestion.
- **Processing Stage**: The stage in which the error has occurred. In Financial Transactions Repository, the only processing stage is Ingestion.

Error Details

On the **Query** page, you can view more details for each of the error records displayed in the data table by selecting the error and clicking on the **Actions** drop-down list.

After the **View Details** option is selected the **Error Details** page is displayed with two sections; **Affected Files** and **Records**.

Note: Only record level errors can be selected and viewed on the **Error Details** page. File level errors cannot be selected and viewed in the **Error Details** page.

Query / Errc	or Details						Systems 1	Files 1	Records 2
Affect	ted Files								
	File		Total Records	Error R	ecords	Timestamp	System	Stream	
1	nets_20180124.t	xt	10	5		2018-05-16 05:26:11	nets	nets	
Recor	ds								
	File	Record No.	Timestamp	System	Stream	Record			
1	nets_20180124.txt	1	2018-05-16 05:25:34	nets	nets	8=FIX.4.3^A9=80^A35=A^A49=ACCIPITE	R^A56=JFIX40^A34=1	^A50=ADMIN^A	43=N^A52
		10	2010 05 14 05:25:24		noto	9-EIV 4 2040-117042E-D0440-TAPCCO		010052 201001	24 10.20

Figure 18: Error Details page

Affected Files

This section displays the files in which the selected error record is present. It displays the name of the original file, total number of records, number of error records, timestamp, system, and stream.

Records

This section displays the record in a readable format in the **Record** column. This enables the analyst to view the actual record data and identify the error, file, record number, timestamp, system, and stream.

Query Records

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository, the **Records** panel on the **Query** page is used to search for records that were ingested in the system.

The following filters are available; date, symbol, start time, and end time. The start time and end time are related to the trading time of the records to be filtered. After the required filters are selected and you click **Apply filters**, the results are displayed in the results section.

				System Status Errors	Query Configuration
Query					
×					
> Errors		Time	Symbol	Quantity	Order Id
✓ Records	1	2018-01-24 09:30:01	PDZ	1177	10001
Date * Symbol *	2	2018-01-24 09:30:05	PDZ	2012	10005
1 2018-01-24 PDZ	3	2018-01-24 09:30:01	PDZ	1177	10001
Start Time End Time	4	2018-01-24 09:30:02	PDZ	3602	10002
00:00:00 23:59:59	5	2018-01-24 09:30:03	PDZ	1671	10003
	6	2018-01-24 09:30:04	PDZ	636	10004
	7	2018-01-24 09:30:05	PDZ	2012	10005
	8	2018-01-24 09:30:01	PDZ	1177	10001
	Results per pa	ge 8 v Page 1 v of 2			1 2 >
Clear all Apply filters					

Figure 19: Query Records

18 IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Chapter 7. Configuration Management

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository, the **Configuration Management** page enables the analyst to configure various systems for the backend ingestion streams component and FIX parser component.

(Configuration Management					
						Upload View Sample file
		File	TimeStamp	•	Active	Actions
	1	config.properties	2018-05-21-07:11:17		Yes	۲
	2	config.properties	2018-05-21-07:09:22		No	۲

Figure 20: Configuration Management page

By default, the page shows the properties files already uploaded into the system. The page show which properties file is active by highlighting the particular row in bold and with the value of **Yes** in the **Active** column. This page provides the ability to view the sample properties, create a new properties file as applicable, and upload the new properties file into the system. After the new properties file is uploaded, a notification indicating the upload was successful is displayed and the data table is refreshed with the new list of configuration files uploaded into the system. Only properties files with a maximum file size of 5MB can be uploaded. The system accepts only properties files with the same format as shown in the sample file.

The existing sample properties file can be viewed by clicking the View icon

۲

in the data table.

	viewing config.properties 2018-05-21-07:11:17	^	Upload View Sample f
File	# Fidessa system properties system1.name=Fidessa	*	Actions
config.properties	system1.stream1.name=Combine AUDIT TRAIL		۲
config.properties	system1.stream1.timeHeader=time system1.stream1.connection_type=file		۲
	system1.stream1.watch.folder= audit_trail		
	system1.stream1.receive.by=16:30:00 system1.stream1.completion.time=02:30:00		
	system1.stream1.completion.maxfile=3		
	system1.stream1.separator=, system1.stream1.orderid= ORDER_ID		
	system1.stream1.symbol=INSTRUMENT_CODE		
	system1.stream1.event.time=EVENT_DATETIME		
	system1.stream1.linkage1= ROOT_ORDER_ID		
	system1.stream1.prop1.required=true		
	system1.stream1.prop1.type=numeric		

Figure 21: Viewing configuration properties

Configuring systems

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), before starting the ingestion component in the backend, the configuration of systems must be completed.

Procedure

- 1. Create a text file and save it as config.properties.
- 2. Open the config.properties file and add the following contents. The samples in the table are for adding one system named "raptor" and one stream in that system named "raptor".

SI Num ber	KEY	Description	Sample
1	system1.name	Name of the system.	system1.name=raptor
2	system1.stream1.name	Name of the stream.	system1.stream1.name=raptor
3	system1.stream1.protocol	Protocol used by the system either FIX or CSV.	system1.stream1.protocol=FIX
4	system1.stream1.connection. type		system1.stream1.connection.type= hagdhad
5	system1.stream1.watch.folde r	The folder where the record file will be placed everyday for the FTR system to process it.	system1.stream1.watch.folder=rap tor
6	system1.stream1.receive.by	The time in HHMMSS to wait for a file in the watch folder.	system1.stream1.receive.by=1630 00
7	system1.stream1.completion. time	The time limit, in HHMMSS format, to wait for a file in the watch folder.	system1.stream1.completion.time= 120000
8	system1.stream1.completion. maxfile	Maximum number of files to listen to in the watch folder before deciding that data is ready for a given stream.	system1.stream1.completion.maxfi le=3
9	system1.stream1.headerpres ent	Specific to CSV formatted files to indicate whether a header is present in the CSV file as the first row.	system1.stream1.headerpresent=0
10	system1.stream1.header	Specific to CSV formatted files to provide the headers as	system1.stream1.header=

SI Num ber	KEY	Description	Sample
		comma separated strings.	
11	system1.stream1.separator	Used to specify the separator of fields in the messages from systems using FIX protocol. For example, or ^A.	system1.stream1.separator=
12	system1.stream1.timeHeader	Used to indicate which fields in readable data correspond to the time field.	system1.stream1.timeHeader=mes sageHeaderSendingTime
13	system1.stream1.symbolHea der	Used to indicate which fields in readable data correspond to the symbol field.	system1.stream1.symbolHeader= messageBodySymbol
14	system1.stream1.orderIdHea der	Used to indicate which fields in readable data correspond to the order ID field.	system1.stream1.orderIdHeader= messageBodyClOrdID
15	system1.stream1.quantityHe ader	Used to indicate which fields in readable data correspond to the quantity field.	system1.stream1.quantityHeader= messageBodyOrderQty

The following text is an example system properties file:

```
# RAPTOR system properties
system1.name=raptor
system1.stream1.name=raptor
system1.stream1.protocol=FIX
system1.stream1.connection.type=hagdhad
system1.stream1.connection.type=hagdhad
system1.stream1.eceive.by=163000
system1.stream1.completion.time=120000
system1.stream1.completion.time=120000
system1.stream1.completion.maxfile=3
system1.stream1.headerpresent=0
system1.stream1.header=
system1.stream1.header=
system1.stream1.separator=
system1.stream1.timeHeader=messageHeaderSendingTime
system1.stream1.orderIdHeader=messageBodySymbol
system1.stream1.orderIdHeader=messageBodyClordID
system1.stream1.quantityHeader=messageBodyOrderQty
```

- 3. To add a second stream for the same system, the keys should follow this naming pattern: system1.stream2.name
- 4. To add a second system, the keys should follow this naming pattern:

system2.name=
system2.stream1.name=

5. After adding the required keys, save the file.

Uploading configuration files

In IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), after creating your configuration file, you must upload it to the system

Procedure

1. On the **Configuration Management** page, click **Upload** to upload the config.properties file.

Upload View Sample file	
Actions	
۲	

2. After the file is uploaded, the system is ready to ingest the system mentioned in the config.properties file.

Chapter 8. Logout

To log out of IBM Financial Transactions Repository (FTR), you can click the drop-down list next to the username on the top right of the screen.



Figure 22: Logout option

You can choose one of the following options from this drop-down list; **About** and **Logout**. After you click **Logout**, the user session ends and the login page is displayed.

24 IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Appendix A. Accessibility features

Accessibility features help users who have a physical disability, such as restricted mobility or limited vision, to use information technology products.

For information about the commitment that IBM has to accessibility, see the <u>IBM Accessibility Center</u> (www.ibm.com/able).

HTML documentation has accessibility features. PDF documents are supplemental and, as such, include no added accessibility features.

26 IBM Financial Transaction Repository Version 2.0.3 : User Guide

Notices

This information was developed for products and services offered worldwide.

This material may be available from IBM in other languages. However, you may be required to own a copy of the product or product version in that language in order to access it.

IBM may not offer the products, services, or features discussed in this document in other countries. Consult your local IBM representative for information on the products and services currently available in your area. Any reference to an IBM product, program, or service is not intended to state or imply that only that IBM product, program, or service may be used. Any functionally equivalent product, program, or service that does not infringe any IBM intellectual property right may be used instead. However, it is the user's responsibility to evaluate and verify the operation of any non-IBM product, program, or service. This document may describe products, services, or features that are not included in the Program or license entitlement that you have purchased.

IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not grant you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM Director of Licensing IBM Corporation North Castle Drive Armonk, NY 10504-1785 U.S.A.

For license inquiries regarding double-byte (DBCS) information, contact the IBM Intellectual Property Department in your country or send inquiries, in writing, to:

Intellectual Property Licensing Legal and Intellectual Property Law IBM Japan Ltd. 19-21, Nihonbashi-Hakozakicho, Chuo-ku Tokyo 103-8510, Japan

The following paragraph does not apply to the United Kingdom or any other country where such provisions are inconsistent with local law: INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION PROVIDES THIS PUBLICATION "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes will be incorporated in new editions of the publication. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this publication at any time without notice.

Any references in this information to non-IBM Web sites are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those Web sites. The materials at those Web sites are not part of the materials for this IBM product and use of those Web sites is at your own risk.

IBM may use or distribute any of the information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you.

Licensees of this program who wish to have information about it for the purpose of enabling: (i) the exchange of information between independently created programs and other programs (including this one) and (ii) the mutual use of the information which has been exchanged, should contact:

IBM Software Group Attention: Licensing 3755 Riverside Dr. Ottawa, ON K1V 1B7 Canada

Such information may be available, subject to appropriate terms and conditions, including in some cases, payment of a fee.

The licensed program described in this document and all licensed material available for it are provided by IBM under terms of the IBM Customer Agreement, IBM International Program License Agreement or any equivalent agreement between us.

Any performance data contained herein was determined in a controlled environment. Therefore, the results obtained in other operating environments may vary significantly. Some measurements may have been made on development-level systems and there is no guarantee that these measurements will be the same on generally available systems. Furthermore, some measurements may have been estimated through extrapolation. Actual results may vary. Users of this document should verify the applicable data for their specific environment.

Information concerning non-IBM products was obtained from the suppliers of those products, their published announcements or other publicly available sources. IBM has not tested those products and cannot confirm the accuracy of performance, compatibility or any other claims related to non-IBM products. Questions on the capabilities of non-IBM products should be addressed to the suppliers of those products.

All statements regarding IBM's future direction or intent are subject to change or withdrawal without notice, and represent goals and objectives only.

This information contains examples of data and reports used in daily business operations. To illustrate them as completely as possible, the examples include the names of individuals, companies, brands, and products. All of these names are fictitious and any similarity to the names and addresses used by an actual business enterprise is entirely coincidental.

If you are viewing this information softcopy, the photographs and color illustrations may not appear.

This Software Offering does not use cookies or other technologies to collect personally identifiable information.

IBM Surveillance Insight for Financial Services includes Brat (v 1.3) from the following source and licensed under the following agreement:

- http://weaver.nlplab.org/~brat/releases/brat-v1.3_Crunchy_Frog.tar.gz
- https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/legalcode

IBM Surveillance Insight for Financial Services includes spaCy Models (v 1.2.0) from the following source and licensed under the following agreement:

- https://github.com/explosion/spacy-models (en_core_web_sm 1.2.0)
- https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/legalcode

Trademarks

IBM, the IBM logo and ibm.com are trademarks or registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies. A current list of IBM trademarks is available on the Web at " Copyright and trademark information " at www.ibm.com/legal/copytrade.shtml.

Index

A

accessibility 25

С

Configuration Management configuring systems <u>20</u> overview <u>19</u> uploading configuration files <u>22</u>

Ε

Errors

overview <u>13</u> Streams <u>13</u> Systems <u>14</u>

I

ingestion $\underline{3}$

L

logging in 5logout 23

0

overview 1

Q

Query error details <u>16</u> errors <u>15</u> overview <u>15</u> Records <u>17</u>

S

Surveillance Insights accessing FTR from <u>5</u> System Status CAT Data Processing <u>12</u> head band section <u>9</u> Processing Stage <u>10</u> Processing Status <u>10</u>

T

trading data files transferring <u>3</u>

